REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE

GENERAL ASSEMBLY

OFFICIAL RECORDS: FORTY-FOURTH SESSION SUPPLEMENT No. 41 (A/44/41)



REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE

GENERAL ASSEMBLY

OFFICIAL RECORDS: FORTY-FOURTH SESSION SUPPLEMENT No. 41 (A/44/41)



New York, 1989

NOTE

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of capital letters combined with figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

CONTENTS

		<u>Paragraphs</u>	Paga
I.	INTRODUCTION	1 - 6	1
	Part One		
	ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION		
II.	ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS	7 - 15	2
	A. Opening and duration of the session	7 - 9	2
	B. Attendance	10 - 13	2
	C. Election of officers	14	3
	D. Adoption of the agenda	15	3
III.	ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS	16 - 18	4
	Part Two		
	FIRST SESSION		
IV.	ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS	19 - 27	5
	A. Opening and duration of the session	19 - 20	5
	B. Attendance	21 - 24	5
	C. Election of officers	25 - 26	6
	D. Adoption of the agenda	27	6
v.	PREPARATION OF AN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE (1991-2000)	28 - 33	7
VI.	ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS	34 - 35	8
	Part Three		
	SECOND SESSION		
VII.	ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS	36 - 43	9
	A. Opening and duration of the session	36 - 37	9
	B. Attendance	38 - 41	9
			•
		42	10
	D. Adoption of the agenda	43	10

CONTENTS (continued)

		Paragraphs	Page
VIII.	PREPARATION OF AN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE (1991-2000).	44 - 49	11
ıx.	ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS	50	13
x.	ADOPTION OF THE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE	51	14
Annex.	List of documents		15

I. INTRODUCTION

- 1. In its resolution 43/182 of 20 December 1988, entitled "Preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade", the General Assembly decided to establish an <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee of the Whole for the Preparation of the International Development Strategy for the fourth United Nations Development Decade, and requested the <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee to submit a progress report to the General Assembly for consideration at its forty-fourth session, with a view to finalizing the strategy in time for its adoption in 1990. The present report has been prepared in accordance with that request.
- 2. In the same resolution, the Assembly also invited the Committee for Development Planning and the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD), the regional commissions and other organizations and specialized agencies of the United Nations system to contribute effectively to the preparatory process for the strategy for providing appropriate input, including relevant documentation, using comprehensive analytical studies.
- 3. The Assembly also requested the Secretary-General to entrust the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation with the responsibility for overall co-ordination of the contributions of relevant secretariats of the United Nations system to the formulation of the strategy.
- 4. In its resolution 43/188 of 20 December 1988 on the report of the Trade and Development Board, the General Assembly invited the Board to contribute effectively to the preparations for the international development strategy, in close co-operation with the <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee of the Whole.
- 5. In its resolution 43/194 also of 20 December 1988 on the examination of long-term trends in economic and social development, the General Assembly requested the Secretary-General to update, as appropriate, the report on the overall socio-economic perspectives of the world economy to the year 2000, in co-operation with the Secretary-General of UNCTAD, taking into account the debate on the subject in the General Assembly at its forty-third session and in the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1988, as well as the views expressed by the Committee for Development Planning, so as to enhance its utility as one of the background documents for the preparation of the development strategy.
- 6. In its decision 43/460, the General Assembly decided to convene from 23 to 27 April 1990 a special session devoted to international economic co-operation, in particular to the revitalization of economic growth and development of the developing countries. In the annex to the decision it is noted that the special session could provide useful guidelines for an international development strategy for the 1990s, and it is stressed that the preparatory processes for the special session and for the international development strategy should be complementary and mutually supportive.

Part One

ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION

II. ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

A. Opening and duration of the session

- 7. The Committee held its organizational session at United Nations Headquarters from 15 to 17 March 1989. The Committee held two meetings (1st and 2nd).
- 8. The session was opened by the Under-Secretary-General for Technical Co-operation for Development.
- 9. At the 1st meeting, on 15 March 1989, the Director of the Office of the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation and the Director of the General Analysis and Policies Division, Department of International Economic and Social Affairs, made introductory statements.

B. Attendance

10. The following States were represented:

Netherlands Algeria Gabon Australia German Democratic New Zealand Austria Republic Nicaraqua Bahamas Germany, Federal Norway Republic of Pakistan Bahrain Bangladesh Ghana Peru Barbados Greece Philippines Guyana Poland Belgium Benin Holy See Portugal Bolivia Hungary Republic of Korea India Saudi Arabia Brazil Burkina Faso Indonesia Singapore Byelorussian Soviet Iran (Islamic Spain Socialist Republic Republic of) Sri Lanka Cameroon Sudan Iraq Canada reland Suriname Sweden Cape Verde Italy Central African Japan Switzerland Thailand Republic Kenya Chile Lao People's Togo China Democratic Republic Tunisia Colombia Lesotho Turkey Democratic Yemen Ukrainian Soviet Luxembourg Socialist Republic Denmark Malawi Malaysia Union of Soviet Ecuador Egypt Maldives Socialist Republics Mexico United States of America El Salvador Fiji Mongolia Uruquay Finland Morocco Venezuela Yugoslavia France Nepal

and the first of the second state of the second state of the second seco

Zaire

11. The following United Nations bodies were represented:

Development and International Economic Co-operation Department of International Economic and Social Affairs United Nations Conference on Trade and Development

12. The following agencies were represented:

International Labour Organisation
Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations
World Health Organization
World Bank
International Monetary Fund
International Fund for Agricultural Development

13. The following intergovernmental organizations were represented:

European Community
League of Arab States
Organization of African Unity

C. Election of officers

14. At the 1st meeting, on 15 March 1989, the Committee elected the following officers by acclamation:

Chairman: Mr. Gamani COREA (Sri Lanka)

<u>Vice-Chairmen</u>: Mr. Ahmed DJOGHLAF (Algeria)

Mr. Alvaro Gurgel DE ALENCAR (Brazil)

Mr. Paul LABERGE (Canada)

Mr. Wolfgang SPROETE (German Democratic Republic)

D. Adoption of the agenda

- 15. At its 1st meeting, the Committee adopted the provisional agenda for the session as contained in document A/AC.232/1, as follows:
 - 1. Election of officers.
 - 2. Adoption of the agenda.
 - 3. Organization of work of the Ad Hoc Committee.

III. ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS

- 16. At the 1st meeting, opening statements were made by the representatives of the United States of America, the German Democratic Republic (on behalf of the Eastern European States), Japan, Spain (on behalf of the States Members of the United Nations that are members of the European Community), India, Pakistan, Malaysia (on behalf of the States Members of the United Nations that are members of the Group of 77), China, Argentina, Bangladesh, Tunisia, Cuba, Senegal, Guyana and the observer for Switzerland.
- 17. At its 2nd meeting, on 17 March 1989, the Committee decided to hold its first session from 5 to 16 June and its second session from 11 to 15 September 1989.
- 18. At the same meeting, the Chairman stated that the Committee might wish to be flexible regarding the use of the time and it ilities allocated to it, depending on the contributions to its first session in June 1989 and the progress made at each session. The Ad Hoc Committee was due to receive reports from the various organizations and specialized agencies of the United Nations system, as requested by the General Assembly in resolution 43/182. The Chairman suggested that informal consultations be held by the Vice-Chairman with the regional groups and that there should be interaction among members of the Ad Hoc Committee, in preparation for the first session. He noted that the Secretariat expected to make a number of documents available prior to the first session, including an update of the Secretary-General's report to the cond regular session of the Economic and Social Council of 1988 on information for the preparation and elaboration of an international development strategy (E/1988/67), the report of the Committee on Development Planning, and the report of the Advisory Committee on Co-ordination Task Force on Long-term Development Objectives.

Part Two

FIRST SESSION

IV. ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

A. Opening and duration of the session

- 19. The <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee held its first session at United Nations Headquarters from 5 to 9 June 1989. The Committee held five meetings (3rd to 7th meetings). It also held informal consultations.
- 20. As a result of informal consultations, the Ad Hog Committee decided at its 7th meeting to conclude its first session on 9 June instead of 16 June, as previously envisaged, with the understanding that the five days saved would be used by the Committee at later meetings.

B. Attendance

21. The following States were represented:

Afghanistan Algeria Argentina Australia Austria Bahamas Bahrain Barbados Belgium Benin Bolivia Brazil Bulgaria Burkina Faso Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic Canada Cape Verde Chile China Congo Costa Rica Cuba _zechoslovakia Democratic Yemen Denmark Djibouti Egypt Finland France German Democratic

Republic

Germany, Federal Republic of Guyana Holy See Honduras Hungary India Iran (Islamic Republic of) Israel Italy Jamaica Japun Lebanon Libyan Arab Jamahiriya Luxembourg Malaysia Maldives Malta Mauritania Mauritius Mongolia Mozambique Netherlands Nigeria Norway Peru Poland Republic of Korea

Senegal Singapore Sudan Swazilan4 Sweden Switzerland Thailand Togo Trinida and Tobago Tunisia Turkey Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic Union of Soviet Socialist Republics United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland United States of America Uruguay Vanuatu Venezuela Viet Nam Yugoslavia Zaire

Saudi Arabia

Romania

Saint Lucia

Rwanda

22. The following United Nations bodies were represented:

Development and International Economic Co-operation Department of International Economic and Social Affairs United Nations Conference on Trade and Development

23. The following agencies were represented:

International Labour Organisation
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization
World Health Organization
World Bank
International Monetary Fund
International Fund for Agricultural Development
United Nations Industrial Development Organization
International Atomic Energy Agency

24. The following intergovernmental organizations were represented:

Commission of the European Communities Commonwealth Secretariat Organization of the Islamic Conference Organization of American States

C. Election of officers

- 25. The officers who were elected at the organizational session officiated (see para. 14).
- 26. At its 4th meeting, on 6 June, the Committee, on the proposal of the Bureau, decided to designate the Vice-Chairman, Mr. Ahmed Djoghlaf (Algeria), as Rapporteur.

D. Adoption of the agenda

- 27. At its 3rd meeting, on 5 June, following statements by the representatives of Algeria, Brazil and France, the Committee revised the provisional agenda contained in document A/AC.232/2 by deleting item 4, "Progress report of the Ad Hoc Committee", and adopted the following agenda.
 - 1. Adoption of the agenda.
 - 2. Election of officers.
 - 3. Preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade (1991-2000).
 - 4. Future organization of work of the Ad Hoc Committee.

- V. PREPARATION OF AN INTERNATIONAL DEVLLOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE (1991-2000)
- 28. The Committee considered the question of the preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade (agenda item 3) at its 3rd to 7th meetings, from 5 to 9 June. It had before it the report of the Secretary-General on the preparation of a strategy (A/AC.232/3).
- 29. At its 3rd meeting, on 5 June, the Committee heard introductory statements by the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation and the Secretary-General of UNCTAD and the Under-Secretary-General for International Economic and Social Affairs.
- 30. Also at the 3rd meeting the Chairman noted that the documentation and informal papers submitted by the Secretariat, the specialized agencies, the regional commissions, United Nations bodies and organizations could serve as useful bases for a well-organized discussion of substantive issues. He summarized the contributions and grouped them according to three main concerns:
- (a) The overall orientation of the strategy and the likely prospects for development. The submissions from the agencies appeared to hold out dim prospects for the 1990s or an only slightly better performance than in the 1980s. Therefore there was need to explore all the possibilities to make the 1990s a better decade;
- (b) The context of a rapidly changing world, for example, globalization of financial markets, advances in science and technology and so on;
- (c) The need to give a new orientation to the process of development itself and to address new problems.
- 31. The Ad Hog Committee held a general discussion of the item at its 4th to 7th meetings, on 6 to 9 June. Statements were made by the representatives of Malaysia (on behalf of the States Members of the United Nations that are members of the Group of 77), Brazil, the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic (on behalf of the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Bulgaria, Czechoslovakia, the German Democratic Republic, Hungary, Poland and the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), China, Canada, Spain (on behalf of the States Members of the United Nations that are members of the European Community), the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, the German Democratic Republic, Algeria, the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Tunisia, Japan, Sweden (on behalf of the Nordic countries), India, Bangladesh, Jamaica, Guyana, the United States of America, Turkey, Australia and Romania.
- 32. Statements were also made 1 the Assistant Director-General for the Economic and Social Policy Department of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO). The representatives of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and of the World Bank also made statements.
- 33. In a closing statement, the Chairman said useful contributions to the new international development strategy had been made both by Governments and by the Secretariat. Although individual approaches to the strategy might differ, the ensuing convergence of themes in the discussion should enable the Ad Hoc Committee to begin tackli g issues related to the preliminary outline of the international development strategy at its session in September.

VI. ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS

- 34. At its 7th meeting, on 9 June, the <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee confirmed the dates of its second session (11 to 15 September 1989) and agreed provisionally to hold its third session from 15 to 26 January 1990 and its fourth session from 4 to 15 June 1990. The Committee also recommended that the five working days saved from its first session could be used at a later stage of its work.
- 35. The Chairman stated that at the September session the Committee could continue its discussions of the broad character and outline of the strategy and leave sectoral and specific issues to a later meeting.

Part Three

SECOND SESSION

VII. ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

A. Opening and duration of the session

- 36. The <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee held its second session at United Nations Headquarters from 11 to 15 September 1989. The Committee held three meetings (8th to 10th). It also held informal consultations.
- 37. The session was opened by the Chairman. Statements were made by the Director-General for Development and International Economic Co-operation and the Assistant Secretary-General for Development Research and Policy Analysis.

B. Attendance

38. The following States were represented:

Afghanistan Algeria Argentina Australia Austria Bahamas Bahrain Barbados Belgium Bolivia Brazil Burkina Faso Burundi Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic Canada Chile China Colombia Costa Rica Czechoslovakia Democratic Yemen Denmark Egypt Finland France Gabon German Democratic Republic Germany, Federal

Republic of

and the state of

Greece Guinea Guyana Holy See Hungary India Iran (Islamic Republic of) Ireland Israel Italy Jamaica Japan Lebanon Libyan Arab Jamahiriya Malawi Malaysia Mali Mauritania Mauritius Mongolia Morocco Myanmar Netherlands Nigeria Norway Pakistan Peru Philippines

Republic of Korea Saudi Arabia Singapore Spain Sri Lanka Sudan Suriname Swaziland Sweden Switzerland Thailand Turkey Uganda Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic Union of Soviet Socialist Republics United Arab Emirates United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland United Republic of Tanzania United States of America Uruquay Vanuatu Venezuela Yemen Yuqoslavia Zaire

Poland

39. The following United Nations bodies were represented:

Development and International Economic Co-operation Department of International Economic and Social Affairs United Nations Conf(rence on Trade and Development

40. The following agencies were represented:

International Labour Organisation
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization
World Health Organization
World Bank
International Monetary Fund
International Fund for Agricultural Development
World Food Council
United Nations Industrial Development Organization

41. The following intergovernmental organizations were represented:

Asian-African Legal Consultative Committee African Development Bank Commonwealth Secretariat Organization of the Islamic Conference

C. Election of officers

42. The officers who were elected at the organizational session officiated (see para. 14).

D. Adoption of the agenda

- 43. At its 8th meeting, on 11 September, the Ad Hoc Committee adopted the provisional agenda contained in document A/AC.232/4, as follows:
 - 1. Adoption of the agenda.
 - 2. Preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade (1991-2000).
 - 3. Progress report of the Ad Hoc Committee.
 - 4. Future organization of work of the Ad Hoc Committee.

- VIII. PREPARATION OF AN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR THE FOURTH UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT DECADE (1991-2000)
- 44. The Committee considered the question of the preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade (agenda item 2) at its 8th to 10th meetings, on 11, 12 and 15 September 1989. It had before it the note by the Secretariat on preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade (A/AC.232/5) and the note by the Secretariat on actions required by the Committee arising from resolutions adopted by the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1989 (A/AC.232/L.2).
- 45. At the 8th meeting, the Assistant Secretary-General for Development Research and Policy Analysis introduced the notes by the Secretariat (A/AC.232/5 and A/AC.232/L.2).
- 46. The Committee held a general discussion of the item at its 8th to 10th meetings. Statements were made by the representatives of Malaysia (on behalf of the Member States that are also members of the Group of 77), Canada, Bulgaria (also on behalf of the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Czechoslovakia, the German Democratic Republic, Hungary, Poland, the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic and the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), France (on behalf of the European Community), and Denmark (also on behalf of Finland, Iceland, Norway and Sweden), Japan, China and the German Democratic Republic. Statements were also made by the representatives of FAO and the International Monetary Fund (IMF), UNCTAD and the World Food Council (WFC).
- 47. At the 10th meeting, on 15 September, the Chairman, in a concluding statement, observed that the main substantive task of the session had been to put together a structure or outline for the strategy and for the work connected with it. A number of crucially important presentations on the structure had been proposed, which provided a valid and valuable basis on which consultations had taken place. In the course of those consultations, a strong convergence of views of what would need to be the main issues in the strategy and on the way in which they would need to be treated or structured had emerged.
- 48. He noted that, owing to a lack of time, it had not been possible to come to a final conclusion, but sufficient material existed on which to build the future work of the Committee. What was needed for the January and June meetings was a set of guidelines on which to structure the Committee's deliberations. There appeared to be broad agreement on the need to begin work in January by focusing first on the goals for the decade of the 1990s. There also seemed to be agreement that special ssues should next be addressed, including the question of accelerating development and other issues such as the alleviation of poverty, the environment, human resources development, sectoral issues, regional questions and special groups of countries. Within these broad categories other subjects would need to be treated, such as finance, trade and technology, agriculture and industry. He noted that he was not attempting to present a comprehensive list but trying to illustrate the approach that should be followed. And finally, there would be the question of follow-up and of implementation.
- 49. The Chairman hoped that, with this kind of structure in mind, the Committee would be able in January to get to the substance of the matter in the light of the material submitted to it by Governments, the United Nations Secretariat, specialized agencies and other organizations. The process of informal

consultation, which had proved to be so fruitful during the second session, should continue between now and the January session. He would be glad to make himself available to delegations for further consultations that would help in those preparations. In his absence, he should encourage the Vice-Chairmen also to be involved so that at the January meeting enough material would exist on which to organize substantive discussions in order to permit Governments to say what their views were on the key issues of relevance to the 1990s.

IX. ARRANGEMENTS FOR FUTURE SESSIONS

50. At its 10th meeting, the <u>Ad Hoc</u> Committee confirmed the dates of its third session from 15 to 26 January 1990 and the fourth session from 4 to 15 June 1990. It also agreed to recommend to the General Assembly that a fifth session be held for a period of two weeks during the months of August and/or September, if the need should arise (see paras. 20 and 34).

X. ADOPTION OF THE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE

51. At the same meeting, the Committee adopted the draft report (A/AC.232/L.7) on its organizational, first and second sessions as orally amended and authorized the Rapporteur to complete the report for submission to the General Assembly at its forty-fourth session pursuant to paragraph 1 of resolution 43/182.

ANNEX

List of documents

A. Basic documentation

Symbol .	Title				
A/AC.232/1	Provisional agenda (Organizational session)				
A/43/376-E/1988/67 and Corr.1	Report of the Secretary-General on the preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade				
A/AC.232/2	Provisional agenda (First session)				
A/AC.232/3	Report of the Secretary-General on the preparation of a new international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade				
E/1989/80	Note by the Secretary-General transmitting the report of the Advisory Committee on Co-ordination Task Force on Long-term Development Objectives on its seventheenth session				
E/1989/29	Report of the Committee for Development Planning on its twenty-fifth session				
A/AC.232/4	Provisional agenda (Second session)				
A/AC.232/5	Note by the Secretariat on preparation of an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade				
B. <u>Background documentation</u>					
A/AC.232/L.1	Note by the Secretariat containing UNCTAD's contribution to the preparations for an international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade				
A/AC.232/L.2	Note by the Secretariat on action required by the Committee arising from resolutions adopted by the Economic and Social Council at its second regular session of 1989				
	C. <u>Submissions by Member States</u>				
A/AC.232/L.3	Draft proposal by the Group of 77 of an outline of the international development strategy for the fourth United Nations development decade				

A/AC.232/L.4	Position paper by the delegations of the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, the People's Republic of Bulgaria, the Czechoslovak Socialist Republic, the German Democratic Republic, the Hungarian People's Republic, the Polish People's Republic, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics and the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic			
A/AC.232/L.5*	First contribution of the European Community and its member States			
A/AC.232/L.6	Draft proposal by China of an outline of a new international development strategy			
D. <u>Information documents</u>				
A/AC.232/INF.1 and Corr.1	List of delegations (Organizational session)			
A/AC.232/INF.2	List of delegations (First session)			

List of delegations (Second session)

A/AC.232/INF.3

كيفية الحصول على منشورات الأمم المتحدة

يمكن الحصول على منشــورات الأمم المتحــدة من المكتبات ودور التوزيع في جميع أنحــاء العالــم . استعلــم عنها من المكتبة التي تتعامــل معها أو اكتــب إلى : الأمــم المتحــدة ، قــــم البيــع في نيويــورك أو في جنيــف .

如何购取联合国出版物

联合国出版物在全世界各地的书店和经售处均有发售。请向书店询问或写信到纽约或日内瓦的 联合国销售组。

HOW TO OBTAIN UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS

United Nations publications may be obtained from bookstores and distributors throughout the world. Consult your bookstore or write to: United Nations, Sales Section, New York or Geneva.

COMMENT SE PROCURER LES PUBLICATIONS DES NATIONS UNIES

Les publications des Nations Unies sont en vente dans les librairies et les agences dépositaires du monde entier. Informez-vous auprès de votre libraire ou adressez-vous à : Nations Unies, Section des ventes, New York ou Genève.

КАК ПОЛУЧИТЬ ИЗДАНИЯ ОРГАНИЗАЦИИ ОБЪЕДИНЕННЫХ НАЦИЙ

Издания Организации Объединенных Наций можно купить в книжных магазинах и агентствах во всех районах мира. Наводите справки об изданиях в вашем книжном магазине или пишите по адресу: Организация Объединенных Наций, Секция по продаже изданий, Нью-Йорк или Женева.

COMO CONSEGUIR PUBLICACIONES DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS

Las publicaciones de las Naciones Unidas están en venta en librerías y casas distribuidoras en todas partes del mundo. Consulte a su librero o diríjase a: Naciones Unidas, Sección de Ventas, Nueva York o Ginebra.